DISTRICT COUNCIL

Guildhall Gainsborough
Lincolnshire DN21 2NA
Tel: 01427 676676 Fax: 01427 675170

AGENDA

Please Note: There will be a Member Briefing held at 10.00am

Licensing Sub Committee
Friday, 10th October, 2025 at 10.30 am
Council Chamber - The Guildhall

Members: Councillor Stephen Bunney
Councillor Maureen Palmer
Councillor Jim Snee

1. To Elect a Chairman for this Meeting Only
2. Apologies for Absence

3. Members' Declarations of Interest
Members may make any declarations of interest at this point but may
also make them at any time during the course of the meeting.

4. Procedure (PAGES 3 - 4)
Please note the procedure to be taken by the committee (which is
attached to this agenda marked A).

5.  Note:
This licensing authority will only allow licensing decisions to be taken
by a minimum of three Councillors. In the event of one member
being unable to attend, their place will be substituted by another
member. In the event of this substitution taking place all parties will
be informed of the change of membership at the beginning of the
hearing.

6. Licence Hearing (PAGES 5 - 134)
Licence Number: 32UHB50224
Hearing Type: Review of a Premises Licence
Applicant: Lincolnshire Police
Premises: Today’'s Extra, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor, Market
Rasen, LN7 6UP
Premises Licence Holder: Grantham Curry Pot Ltd

Agendas, Reports and Minutes will be provided upon request in the following formats:

Large Clear Print: Braille: Audio: Native Language



Paul Burkinshaw
Head of Paid Service
The Guildhall
Gainsborough

Tuesday, 30 September 2025



Agenda Item 4

Procedure for Hearings
Licensing Act 2003

1. Election of Chair

2. Chair’s welcome and opening remarks

Name of applicant and the premises address

The introduction of the Members of the sub-committee and officers
Introduction of applicant and objectors

Chair to explain that all parties have been given notice to attend the hearing
and that the hearing will proceed notwithstanding a party’s failure to attend the
hearing

o O O O

Legal Advisor to explain the procedure to the parties

Senior Licensing Officer will present the application which will include any previous
licensing history.

3. Applicant to present case

o The applicant or their representative present their case

o The applicant or their representative will then call any witnesses and/or give
evidence in support of their case

o The objector(s) or their representative may then question the applicant and
their witnesses

o The Members of the sub-committee may ask questions of the applicant and
their withesses

o The applicant or their representative will then be given a final opportunity to
ask any further questions of their witnesses to clear up any points raised in the
earlier questioning.

4. The Objector’s case
This procedure will be followed for each individual objector:

o The objector or their representative will give their reasons for objecting to the
application

o The objector or their representative will then call any witnesses

o The applicant or their representative may then question the objector or their
representative and any witnesses

o The Members of the sub-committee may ask questions of the objector or their
representative and any witnesses

o The objector or their representative will then be given a final opportunity of
asking any further questions of their withesses to clear up any points raised in
the earlier questioning

5. Amendments

The Applicant is asked by the Chair of the sub-committee whether, in light of the
objections, they wish to amend the application (when they retire Members will
consider only the application before them at that time).

Page 3



If the applicant wishes to amend the application or indicates that they are prepared
for Members to give consideration to an amended application (if Members are
minded to refuse the original application) the objector(s) are to be given the
opportunity to comment on the amended application.

6. Closing Statement or Summary

The objector(s) can summarise any points they wish to make and comment briefly on
the applicant’s replies to questions. They cannot introduce any new issues at this
stage.

The applicant can summarise any points they wish to make and comment briefly on
the objector’s replies to questions. They cannot introduce new issues at this stage.

7. Conclusion

The Chair will then ask the Legal Advisor whether there are any other matters to be
raised or resolved before the sub-committee retires to begin its deliberations. The
sub-committee will exclude the press and public from its deliberations and its
decision making.

The Chair will advise the hearing that they will retire to consider the application and
that the Legal Advisor will be retiring with them but will not take part in the
deliberation.

Once a decision has been made everybody is invited back in and the Chair
announces the decision and will give reasons for the decision including any
conditions that have been attached and the right of appeal if necessary. The
decision will subsequently be formally notified to the Applicant and the Legal Advisor
in writing by the Clerk to the Committee within 5 working days.

N.B. if legal advice is given to Members by the Legal Advisor then this advice
will be repeated in summary form by the Legal Advisor when the public are re-
admitted.

If any party to the hearing or the Senior Licensing Officer are required to
address the Committee during their deliberations, all parties will be invited to
hear these issues.

Page 4



Agenda Iltem 6

Licensing Sub Committee

indsey

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Friday, 10 October 2025

Subject: Review of a Premises Licence

Report by: Bill Cullen
Interim Head of Paid Service

Contact Officer: Kimble Enderby
Senior Licensing and Community Safety Officer
kimble.enderby@west-lindsey.gov.uk

Purpose / Summary: This report is being put before the Members of the
Licensing Sub-Committee for them to determine
the outcome of this review.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

That Members take into account all the information put before them, both within
this report and presented to them at the hearing, by all parties in attendance.

Members will then need to decide which of the options presented to them in
section 6 of this report are appropriate in determining this application, taking into
account The Licensing Act 2003, s.182 Statutory Guidance and West Lindsey
District Council’s Licensing Policy.

Page 5


mailto:kimble.enderby@west-lindsey.gov.uk

IMPLICATIONS

Legal: The Licensing Act 2003, Schedule 5, Part 1 makes provision for the
applicant of a premises licence and the licence holder and any other person
who made relevant representations to appeal the outcome of the hearing.

Any appeal must be made to the Magistrates Court for the local justice area in
which the premises concerned is situated.

Any appeal must be commenced within 21 days beginning with the day on
which the appellant was notified by the authority of the decision appealed
against.

Financial: N/A

Staffing: N/A

Equality and Diversity including Human Rights:
Article 6 — Right to a fair hearing in public before an independent and impartial
tribunal.

Data Protection Implications: Personal data within the report appendices has
been redacted where relevant.

Climate Related Risks and Opportunities: N/A

Section 17 Crime and Disorder Considerations:

(S.17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998) - (1) Without prejudice to any other obligation
imposed on it, it shall be the duty of each authority to which this section applies
to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise
of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent,
crime and disorder in its area.

Health Implications: N/A

Page 6



Title and Location of any Background Papers used in the preparation of this
report:

Licensing Act 2003
WLDC Statement of Licensing Policy

Guidance made under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

https://www.west-lindsey.gov.uk/licensing/licensing-gambling-policies/licensing-
policy

Risk Assessment:

Call in and Urgency:

Is the decision one which Rule 14.7 of the Scrutiny Procedure Rules apply?

i.e. is the report exempt from being called in due to Yes No
urgency (in consultation with C&I chairman)

Key Decision:

A matter which affects two or more wards, or has Yes No
significant financial implications

Page 7



https://www.west-lindsey.gov.uk/licensing/licensing-gambling-policies/licensing-policy
https://www.west-lindsey.gov.uk/licensing/licensing-gambling-policies/licensing-policy

WEST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL

LICENSING ACT 2003

Licence Number: 32UHB50224.

Hearing Type: Review of a Premises Licence.

Applicant: Lincolnshire Police.

Premises: Today’s Extra, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor, Market Rasen, LN7 6UP.

Premises Licence Holder: Grantham Curry Pot Ltd.

Hearing Date: 10 October 2025

111

1.1.2

1.13

1.2

The Application for Review

An application for review of the Premises Licence for Today’s Extra, 2
Horsemarket, Caistor, Lincolnshire LN7 6UP has been made by
Lincolnshire Police which was received on 23" July 2025. Lincolnshire
Police are a Responsible Authority, as defined by Section 13(4) of the
Licensing Act 2003 and are therefore entitled to apply for a review of a
licence when of the opinion a premises is failing to operate with a view
to promoting one or more of the licensing objectives. A copy of the
application, outlining the grounds for review is attached at Appendix 1.

From the information detailed in the review application, Lincolnshire
Police have concluded that there is evidence to show the licensing
objective for the prevention of crime and disorder is being undermined.

Lincolnshire Police initially visited the premises on 27t September 2024
where a member of staff was found to have no status in the UK and no
right to work. Alongside this they identified non-compliance with
conditions of the premises licence. They revisited the premises on 7th
November 2024 discovering that non-compliance issues still remained.
The final visit made by Lincolnshire Police was on 17" June 2025, the
male encountered on the first visit was again encountered in the store,
attempted to make off from officers, was detained and admitted to
working at the premises despite still having no right to work in the UK.
Full details of these visits can be found within the review application
submitted by Lincolnshire Police

Additional supporting information in the form of statements, interview
notes and pocket note book entries from Lincolnshire Police, are made
available for Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee. This information
can be found within appendices A,B,C,D,E,F,G,and H. All sensitive or
restricted information has been reacted by Lincolnshire Police prior to
submission of their review application.

Page 8




1.4.1 Section 51(3)(a)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the applicant of a

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

premises review, to notify each Responsible Authority by way of a Notice
containing details of the review application. The Licensing Authority
must also advertise the review application and invite representations to
be made by Other Persons and Responsible Authorities.

The Premises

Grantham Curry Pot Ltd holds the premises licence (32UHB50224)
authorising the provision of late-night refreshment and the sale by retalil
of alcohol for consumption off the premises only. A premises licence
was originally issued in September 2005 and the latest change made to
this licence was an application for the variation to the person holding the
position of DPS. This application was made on 31%t October 2024
(requesting immediate effect). A copy of the premises licence including
any attached conditions can be found at Appendix 2.

Representations — Responsible Authorities

There have been no representations from other Responsible Authorities
within the statutory timescale.

Representations — Other persons

There have been no representations received from any Other Persons
within the statutory timescale.

Considerations

With respect to the review application, Members of the Licensing Sub-
Committee must satisfy themselves whether or not the licence holder is
satisfactorily promoting the licensing objective in relation to the
prevention of crime and disorder.

The authority may only interfere with the licence if it considers it
appropriate in order to promote the licensing objectives and if it does
interfere, then it must do so proportionately.

In considering the application for review and making its decision the
Licensing Sub-Committee must do so in line with:

e The Licensing Act 2003

e The Section 182 Guidance made under the Act

e The Licensing Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy

When considering the application and any representations received,
attention is drawn to the Licensing Authority’s Policy which can be found
at the link below by clicking on the Download Tab, then downloading the
Policy:
http://www.west-lindsey.gov.uk/businesses/licensing/licensing-and-
gambling-policies/licensing-policy/104810.article

Attention is also drawn to the contents of the section 182 statutory
guidance which can be fount &g 8nk below:


http://www.west-lindsey.gov.uk/businesses/licensing/licensing-and-gambling-policies/licensing-policy/104810.article
http://www.west-lindsey.gov.uk/businesses/licensing/licensing-and-gambling-policies/licensing-policy/104810.article

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-
memorandum-revised-quidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-
2003

Options

The Licensing Sub-Committee must, having regard to the application for
review, take such steps, if any, it considers appropriate and
proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

The steps available are:

to modify the conditions of the licence

to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence

to remove the designated premises supervisor from the licence
to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months

to revoke the licence

For the avoidance of doubt the conditions of a licence are modified if any
of them is altered or omitted or any new condition is added.

Alternatively, the Sub-Committee may consider that no action is required
or that a warning should be issued and/or recommend improvement
within a particular period of time. Such informal warnings, in writing, are
an important mechanism for ensuring the licensing objectives are
effectively promoted.

Any action the Licensing Sub-Committee resolve to implement must be
appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the licensing
objectives in the circumstances that gave rise to the application for
review.

N.B. Whatever decision the Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee
arrive at, they are reminded about the comments made in a court case,
known as Hope and Glory, in relation to reasons for their decision
making. The comments noted from this case stated: “The fuller and
clearer the reasons, the more force they are likely to carry”. Therefore
taking these comments into account, Members are strongly advised to
give good, clear, justifiable reasons in relation to their decision, which
will have more chance of being upheld, should the decision be appealed
against.

If the Licensing Sub-Committee resolve to implement any of the steps
set out at 6.2 above, the action will not take effect until the end of the
period for appeal (21 days) or if the decision is appealed against, until
the appeal is disposed of.

List of Associated Papers

Appendix 1 - Application for Review.

Appendix 2 - Premises Licence — Today’s Extra, Caistor.

Appendices - A, B, C, D, E,F,G,H. Statements, interview notes and
pocket note book entries from Lincolnshire Police.

Page 10


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003

Background Papers
Licensing Act 2003

Section 182 Government Guidance
WLDC Statement of Licensing Policy

Page 11



West Lindsey District Council

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure

that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I Paul Gibson (Chief Constable of Lincolnshire Police)

(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Today’s

2 Horsemarket
Caistor

Market Rasen

Post town Post code (if known)

Lincolnshire LN7 6UP

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Grantham Curry Pot Ltd

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)

32UHBS50224

Part 2 - Applicant details

Iam Please tick v yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

3) a member of the club to which this application relates
(please complete (A) below)

Page 12




(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v" yes

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v yes
I am 18 years old or over

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (W

Page 13




(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Lincolnshire Police
Alcohol Licensing
Police Headquarters
Deepdale Lane,
Nettleham,
Lincolnshire

LN2 2LT

Telephone number (if any)
101 - Lincolnshire

E-mail address (optional)
Countylicensinggroup@lincs.police.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v’
1) the prevention of crime and disorder

2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

OO0O0OX

Page 14




Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

This review application relates to a premises which operates as a general
convenience store offering food and drink to the local community, it has been granted
a Premises Licence 32UHB50224 by West Lindsey District Council authorising the
sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises. The sale of alcohol is authorised
between 06:00 and midnight 7 days a week.

The current premises licence holder is Grantham Curry Pot Ltd and designated
premises supervisor is Rajith Subramaniam. The sole director of Grantham Curry Pot
Ltd is Arumugam Kalamohan.

Lincolnshire Police have obtained evidence which indicates that the management of
these premises has been operating it in such a manner that amounts to criminal ac-
tivity and thus undermines the licencing objective of the prevention of crime and dis-
order. There is also clear evidence of non-compliance with the conditions set out on
the premises licence.

Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Section 2.1 Licensing authorities should look to the Police as the main source of advice
on crime and disorder.

Section 11.23 states where the premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the li-
censing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough ac-
tion to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed
insufficient, to revoke the licence.

Section 11.24 states that reviews do not have to be directly linked or connected with
the licensable activities at any premises.

Section 11.25 states that in any case, it is for the licensing authority to determine
whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on the
premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Section 11.26 states that where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the
grounds that the premises have been used for criminal purposes, it is solely to
determine what steps should be taken in connection with the premises licence, for
the promotion of the crime prevention objective. The licensing authority’s duty is to
take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives and the prevention
of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and not those of the
individual licence holder.

Section 11.27 states that there is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection
with licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the
use of licensed premises;

- for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK.

Section 11.28 states that it is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home
Office (Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are
responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to deter such
activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that
the crime prevention objective is undermined through the premises being used to

Page 15



further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance
— should be seriously considered.

West Lindsey District Council’s statement of Licencing policy (December 2020)
has also been considered and the following points are deemed relevant:

1.7 In undertaking its licensing function, the Licensing Authority will have regard to
other legislation, including, but not exclusively:

- Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998: requires the Council to take all
reasonable steps to reduce crime and disorder within the district.

- Immigration Act 2016

5.1.1 The Licensing Authority will carry out its licensing functions with a view to
promoting the prevention of crime and disorder and will seek to ensure that licensees
take measures to regulate the behaviour of persons whilst on their premises, or in the
immediate vicinity of the premises.

5.1.2 In addition to the requirement for the Licensing Authority to promote this licensing
objective, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
Page 15 of 40 exercise its functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise
of those functions on, and do all it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in the
District.

5.1.5 CCTV remains one of the most effective measures for reducing crime and
disorder. The Licensing Authority expects premises that retail alcohol for consumption
on or off the premises will have an effective CCTV system installed that operates in
compliance with the requirements of Lincolnshire Police.

5.3.5 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants who
may need to take account of them in their operating schedule, having regard to their
particular type of premises and/or activities:

e Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or engaged to
prevent incidents of public nuisance e.g. to ensure customers leave quietly,

e Provision of CCTV

8.19.1 Section 36 of and Schedule 4 to the Immigration Act 2016 made a number of
amendments to the Licensing Act 2003 to introduce immigration safeguards in respect
of licensing applications made in England and Wales on or after 6 April 2017. The
intention of these changes is to prevent illegal working in premises licensed for the sale
of alcohol or late night refreshment.

8.19.5 The statutory prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective in the
Licensing Act 2003 includes the prevention of immigration crime and the prevention of
illegal working in licensed premises. The licensing authority will work in partnership
with the Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) and Lincolnshire Police with a view
to preventing illegal working in premises licensed for the sale of alcohol or late night
refreshment.

8.19.6 The licensing authority will have regard to any guidance issued by the Home
Office in relation to the immigration related provisions now contained in the Licensing
Act 2003.

Page 16




Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Section 17

Duty to consider crime and disorder implications.
(1) Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the duty of
each authority to which this section applies to exercise its various functions with due
regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all
that it reasonably can to prevent,
(a) crime and disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour
adversely affecting
the local environment); and

(b) the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its area, and

(c) re-offending in its area

(2) This section applies to each of the following—

.a local authority ........;

Page 17




Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

The premises licence for Today’s in Caistor has been under the control of Mr
Kalamohan since September 2023 when the licence was transferred to AK
Lincoln Ltd - a company of which Mr Kalamohan is the sole director. At the
same time a vary DPS application was received naming Mr Kalamohan as the
new designated premises supervisor.

In November 2023 a variation application was received to make amendments
to the licensable hours and also to update and modernise the conditions held
within the premises licence. The update to the licence conditions was insti-
gated by Mr Kalamohan’s agent and was welcome as there had previously
been no annex 2 conditions at all. The conditions offered seemed appropriate
for the operating style of the business and were clear and easy to understand.

In April 2024 the premises licence was transferred into a different company
name — Grantham Curry Pot Ltd. Mr Kalamohan is also the sole director of
this company.

On 27t September 2024 Police and council licensing teams carried out a joint
visit to check compliance with the premises licence. There was a male work-
ing in the shop who identified himself to officers and was eventually found to
have no status in the UK and thus no right to work. Police were directed by
Home Office Immigration to arrest this individual. Officers also checked com-
pliance with the premises licence and found some cause for concern. The
CCTV appeared to be recording but did not retain for the required period only
saving footage for 23 days as opposed to 28 as per the premises licence.
There was a comprehensive training folder in relation to age restricted sales
but unfortunately this hadn’t been signed by staff including the male working
at the time of the visit.

Following this visit PC Casey emailed Mr Kalamohan to outline the concerns
found but no reply was forthcoming. PC Casey reported the matter of the ille-
gal worker to Immigration and the evidence was sent to the civil penalty team
for their consideration.

(See appendix A — Statement of PC Casey and appendix B — Pocket
Notebook Entry of PC Casey dated 27.09.24).

A further vary DPS application was received on 4" November 2024 and
sought to change the DPS from Mr Kalamohan to Mr Rajith Subramaniam.

On 7" November 2024 Police reattended with Immigration Officers. On this
occasion the new DPS, Mr Subramaniam, was present. Mr Subramaniam was
not able to operate the CCTV as he said he could not locate the mouse. The
staff training manual was still unsigned and the DPS authority to sell alcohol
was out of date and did not have names of current employees or the DPS.

Page 18




(See appendix C — Pocket Notebook Entry of PC Casey dated 07.11.24)

On 17" June 2025 the Police Licensing Officer attended Today’s again, this
time with the Community Beat Manager — PC Turner. Upon entering Police
encountered the same male that had been working illegally at the premises on
27" September 2024. On recognising the Officer’s, the male fled the shop but
was later detained after being found hiding behind a parked vehicle on a
nearby driveway. Checks with immigration determined that this male was not
liable to be detained any further but did confirm that he still had no permission
to work in the UK. Police spoke at length with the male via a telephone inter-
preting service. During the conversation the male admitted that he had re-
turned to the premises and had been working there for 2 weeks over 2-3 days
each week. He disclosed that he was paid £6.00 per hour in cash which is
considerably less than the national minimum wage of £12.21 per hour for over
21’s

PC Casey had a brief telephone conversation with Mr Kalamohan and ex-
plained that CCTV would be requested via email as the staff on site were una-
ble to operate the system. After this visit PC Casey requested footage from
the premises by emailing Mr Kalamohan and Mr Subramaniam (DPS). Foot-
age was requested for one hour across all cameras at the time of the visit.
Footage was provided in the coming days, but it only displayed 8 cameras’,
one of which was not working so appeared blacked out. Of the footage pro-
vided there were no cameras covering the rear section of the shop and noth-
ing to show what the illegal worker was doing prior to Police arrival. The illegal
worker had been in the rear section of the shop upon PC Casey’s arrival. Dur-
ing a phone call to Mr Kalmohan PC Casey asked if there were cameras cov-
ering the rear of the shop to which he said there weren’t, he also clarified that
the eighth blank camera was currently not working but only covered the out-
side of the shop. PC Casey re-attended the shop on 10" July and was shown
the CCTV by a staff member on the premises. PC Casey noted that there was
a total of 16 cameras across the shop and that the rear of the premises was
very well covered. On checking the retention period of the footage, it was
identified that here was no footage prior to 4™ July meaning that it was only
keeping footage for 7 days and not the 28 required on the premises licence.

(See appendix D Statement of PC Casey dated 15.07.25, appendix E llle-
gal working interview notes, appendix F Pocket Notebook Entry of PC
Casey dated 17.06.25 and appendix G Pocket Notebook Entry of PC Ca-
sey dated 10.07.25)

During the above period PC Casey has exchanged several emails with Mr
Kalamohan and/or the DPS. The DPS has never responded to emails but the
chain can be seen in Appendix H. Mr Kalamohan has responded but has
never acknowledged the non-compliance or discovery of illegal workers. (See
appendix H email chain between 01.10.24 and 10.07.25).

It is an offence to employ an illegal worker under section 21 of the Immigration,
Asylum and Nationality Act 2006, as amended by section 35 of the Immigration
Act 2016, if the employer knows or has reasonable cause to believe that they

Page 19




are employing an illegal worker. The employer by law must carry out various
checks to ensure that their staff are legally allowed to work.

Where an employer pays wages to illegal workers off record with no tax or na-
tional insurance deductions which are then deliberately omitted from an em-
ployers End of Tax Year P35 returns to HMRC, the employer may be dealt with
by means of the Fraud Act 2006. Similarly, HMRC may take action as a civil
proceedings case and raise a tax debt against the business.

lllegal workers are more than likely poorly paid for the hours they are required
to work and are not subject to the benefit of a minimum wage or restricted hours
as prescribed in law. Nor are they afforded the benefit of the protections offered
by UK employment legislation and are therefore often exploited.

Lincolnshire has led the way with how illegal working within licenced premises
and its impact on how the crime prevention objective should be viewed. The
stated case of East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif in 2016 involved an
illegal worker in a licenced premises in Lincolnshire in April 2014, where a civil
penalty was later issued by immigration. The premises licence was reviewed
and revoked, an appeal followed which was successful, based on the argument
that a civil penalty was not a prosecution and so did not concern the crime
prevention objective. East Lindsey District Council then appealed that decision
by way of a case stated, arguing that it was not necessary for a crime to have
been reported, prosecuted, or established in a court of law in order for the crime
prevention objective to be engaged. That the licensing objectives were prospec-
tive and were concerned with the avoidance of harm in the future. Mr Justice
Jay upheld the councils appeal, citing defrauding the revenue and exploitation
of vulnerable individuals by not paying minimum wage as evidence of the com-
mission of criminal offences, and the fact that the employee could not provide
the required paperwork as clear inference that Mr Hanif well knew that he was
employing an illegal worker.

Lincolnshire Police have two main concerns with this premises the first being
the illegal working and the second the consistent non-compliance.

The non-compliance is disappointing especially since Mr Kalamohan himself
suggested the very conditions that he is now breaching. Breach of those con-
ditions is an offence under s.136 Licensing Act 2003.

Whilst the DPS is previously not known to have raised concerns for us in Lin-
colnshire, Mr Kalamohan has been subject to other licence review hearings in
the County. Those reviews have been instigated for the same reasons as this
one, illegal working and non-compliance — it appears as though lessons are
not being learnt.

In 2018 Lincolnshire Police requested a review of the premises licence at To-
day’s Express, 20 Market Place, Grantham after the discovery of an illegal
worker at the shop and non-compliance with the conditions on the premises

Page 20




licence. South Kesteven District Council’s licensing committee made the deci-
sion to revoke this licence. Home Office Immigration also served a £10,000
penalty in relation to this matter.

In 2020 Lincolnshire Police submitted a review in relation to Today’s Extra 50
Kesteven Road, Stamford again due to the discovery of an illegal worker and
s.136 Licensing Act 2003 offences. The licensing committee, on this occasion,
opted to implement additional conditions on the premises licence.

At the time of both the reviews the premises licence holder was either Mr
Kalamohan himself or a company of which he was the director. Since these
reviews there have also been concerns about illegal working and non-compli-
ance at Today’s Red Lion Square, Stamford and Today’s Kesteven Road,
Stamford. Both premises are also under the control of Mr Kalamohan/Mohan
Retail Ltd.

Lincolnshire Police feel that the above information demonstrates that either Mr
Kalamohan still does not understand the Licensing Act 2003, the licensing ob-
jectives and associated legislation or Mr Kalamohan has a total disregard for
these matters. Either way, Lincolnshire Police deem the management of the
premises to be unacceptable and feel that there have been sufficient and ap-
propriate warnings/advice given to Mr Kalamohan. Lincolnshire Police cannot
identify any other conditions that could be imposed to prevent the highlighted
issues from recurring.

Lincolnshire Police respectfully request that the licensing sub-committee con-
sider revocation of the premises licence.

Page 21




Please tick v’ yes

Have you made an application for review relating to the N.A
premises before

o Day Month Year
If yes please state the date of that application S S
[ [ [ ] | I I LT

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them

There have not been previous representations in relation to this premises
however, Mr Kalamohan is no stranger to the review processes as described
above.

Page 22




Please tick v/
yes

e [ have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

e [ understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature -

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

4. The application form must be signed.

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Page 23




Guildhall
W t e d Marshall's Yard
Gainsb h
ESKLINGSEY e
DN21 2NA

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Part 1 - Premises Details

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

Today's Extra

2 Horsemarket, Caistor, Lincolnshire, LN7 6UP.

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

- provision of late night refreshment
- the sale by retail of alcohol

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To
L. Late night refreshment (Indoors)

Monday to Sunday 11:00pm Midnight
M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only

Monday to Sunday 6:00am Midnight

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To
Monday to Sunday 6:00am Midnight

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES
- M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only

Part 2

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Grantham Curry Pot Ltd 80 White Lion Road, Amersham, Buckinghamshire, HP7 9JS.

mohanretail@hotmail.co.uk

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)
Grantham Curry Pot Ltd 14192497

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE

AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Rajith SUBRAMANIAM Flat B rear, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor, Lincolnshire, LN7 6UP.

Printed by LalPac on 20 Aug 2025 at 10:42 |||"||| |H:|:|HH’H"H"""“|I|I"| || ||| 32UHB50224/24061 Page 1 of 5



West Lindsey arshelle e

Lincolnshire
DISTRICT COUNCIL DN21 2NA

PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PERSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Licence No. Z01N08389H/2 Issued by Waltham Forest

ANNEXES

Mandatory Conditions Supply of alcohol (Off-Licensed Premises)
No supply of alcohol may be made under this licence:

e at atime when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
licence or,

e at atime when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or
his personal licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person
who holds a personal licence.

Any supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises must be in a sealed container.

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age
verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. The policy
must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE

A CCTV camera system, capable of providing good quality images in all lighting conditions, shall
be used covering the interior and the immediate exterior (entrance) of the premise. Images will
be retained for a period of at least 28 days and be made available to the Police and Authorised
Officers upon reasonable written request for evidential purposes, in accordance with the relevant
data protection legislation (currently GDPR 2018).

The CCTV recording equipment shall be kept in a secure environment under the control of the

premises licence holder (PLH) and/or another named responsible individual.

The DPS and staff will be vigilant and monitor the area immediately outside the shop to check

Printed by LalPac on 20 Aug 2025 at 10:42 |||"||| ||| |||HHH{HHIMHI|I|I"| || ||| 32UHB50224/24061 Page 2 of 5



West Lindsey arshelle e

Lincolnshire
DISTRICT COUNCIL DN21 2NA

ANNEXES continued ...
that youths are not causing annoyance by congregating.

Printed by LalPac on 20 Aug 2025 at 10:42

Spirits will be kept behind the counter

Any incidents of crime and disorder at or immediately outside the premises, witnessed by staff,
will be recorded in an incident book kept at the shop. This book will be made available for
inspection by the Police and the other responsible authorities.

Deliveries to the shop will be arranged during hours to prevent public nuisance.

A notice(s) will be on display in the shop asking customers to leave the shop quietly and not to
drop any litter on the floor.

Staff will monitor the area immediately outside the shop on a regular basis to check for, and to
dispose of, any litter.

Challenge 25 shall be used and signage will be on display.

Alcohol will only be sold to people who can satisfy or prove to the seller that they are 18 years
old or over. The only acceptable form of ID will be a passport, photo driving licence, a PASS

accredited proof of age card, or other form of photo ID as recommended by Trading Standards.

A refusals register (for the sale of alcohol) will be used and be made available for inspection by

responsible authorities.

A notice(s) shall be displayed in the premises where they can be seen clearly to advise
customers that it is unlawful for persons under 18 to purchase alcohol or for any persons to

purchase alcohol on behalf of a person under 18 years of age.

All staff selling alcohol will be trained on the prevention of underage sales. Training will be
delivered on a regular basis (every 12 months) and records will be made available for inspection
by Lincolnshire Police and other Authorised Officers.

N DA N]  ooomsooaeeomt Pagesors




West Lindsey el rare

Lincolnshire
DISTRICT COUNCIL DN21 2NA

ANNEXES continued ...

CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY

Not Applicable.

Printed by LalPac on 20 Aug 2025 at 10:42 |||"||| ||| |||HHH{HJ|HIMMI|I|I"| || ||| 32UHB50224/24061 Page 4 of 5



Guildhall
W t e d Marshall's Yard
Gainsb h
ESKLINGSEY e
DN21 2NA

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Premises Details

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

Today's Extra

2 Horsemarket, Caistor, Lincolnshire, LN7 6UP.

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

- provision of late night refreshment
- the sale by retail of alcohol

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To
L. Late night refreshment (Indoors)

Monday to Sunday 11:00pm Midnight
M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only

Monday to Sunday 6:00am Midnight

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To
Monday to Sunday 6:00am Midnight

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

- M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Grantham Curry Pot Ltd
80 White Lion Road, Amersham, Buckinghamshire, HP7 9JS.

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)
Grantham Curry Pot Ltd 14192497

NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL
Rajith SUBRAMANIAM

STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED

Not applicable

Printed by LalPac on 20 Aug 2025 at 10:42 |||"||| |H:|:|HH’H"H“""“|I|I"| || ||| 32UHB50224/24061 Page 5 of 5



Form MG11

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r. 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9
URN
Statement of: Rebeka Casey
,:‘ge if under 018 (if over 18 insert ‘over 18) Occupation: Police Constable 1299

This statement (consisting of 4 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and
I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it,
anything which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature: - Date 07/10/24

‘/

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded [_| (supply witness details on rear)

| am the above named person employed as a Police Constable within Lincolnshire Police, | currently
work in the Alcohol Licensing Team and predominantly cover the Lincoln and West Lindsey District

areas.

On Friday 27" September 2024 | was on duty and in company with Sgt Adams and Tracy Gavins from
West Lindsey District Council’s licensing team. At approximately 11:00 hours we attended Today’s
Convenience Store, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor to carry out a routine compliance check. This was the first
time that the premises had been visited by licensing officers since the licence was transferred in
September 2023. At the time of the visit the premises licence holder (PLH) was Grantham Curry Pot Ltd
company number 14192497 with the sole director being Arumugam Kalamohan. The designated

premises supervisor (DPS) was also Arumugam Kalamohan.

Upon entering the store, | engaged with the staff member who was behind the counter. It was quickly
established that there were no other staff present. The male behind the counter was wearing a black
polo shirt bearing the “Today’s” logo on the top left side and had the words “Challenge 25” on the right
side. | asked if the gentleman had any identification to which he said he did not, he did not appear to

have any belongings or possessions other than a mobile phone. | had concerns about this gentleman

Page 1 of 2

Signature:

* Signature witnessed by:

Page 29

03/2017



Form MG11

URN

Statement of:

and suspected that he may not have had the right to work because he was unable to provide ID or
confirm his home address. In order to ascertain the males ID | placed him on the fingerprint scanner and
was able to confirm his details as ||| GGG 2o s'i Lanka. | then made a call
to the Home Office National Command and Control Unit (NCCU) who were able to provide further details
in relation to Mr [ l] Mr Il initially had an asylum claim but this was rejected, he had not
been in contact with immigration services since November 2023. Based on this information | was
advised that M- needed to be arrested under s.17 Immigration Act 1971. Subsequently the

male was arrested and transported to Lincoln Custody.

Whilst | had been making enquiries with NCCU the shop remained open and several customers came in
to purchase goods, being served by M- every time. He seemed proficient at using the till and

knew his way around the premises and its stock well.

During the visit we checked compliance with the premises licence and found some minor breaches. The
CCTV did not retain for the required period only recording back for 23 days instead of 28. There was a
comprehensive folder containing various training documents and authorities but unfortunately, much of
the paperwork was unsigned suggesting that staff had not received the training. | could not see any
evidence that Mr- had received any training, yet he was in sole charge of the premises on the

day and had the keys to the shop.

| spoke to Mr Kalamohan on the telephone to ask about what he would like us to do to secure the shop.
He asked us to lock the door and put the keys through the letterbox but there was no letterbox. | made
another call to Mr Kalamohan who said that he was sending another staff member to take over. A short

while later another gentleman arrived and provided ID —_). The

keys were given to him after checking again with Mr Kalamohan on the telephone.
Page 2 of 2

Signature:

* Signature witnessed by:

Pag b 30

03/2017



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Today's Extra

I/c Tracy Gavins, Ps Adams

Cctv could not be operated by staff member.

Photograph(s)

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 31 Page 1 of 13
OFFICIAL



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Page 32
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 2 of 13



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Page 33
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 3 of 13



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Page 34
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 4 of 13



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Exhibit Ref Docs
Description Of ltem Docs

Page 35
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 5 of 13



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Page 36
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 6 of 13



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Page 37
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 7 of 13



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Page 38
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 8 of 13



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Page 39
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 9 of 13



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Page 40
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 10 of 13



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Page 41
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 11 of 13



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Page 42
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 12 of 13



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 11:16:36

Exhibit Ref Staff training
Description Of Item Blank

Exhibit Ref Challenge 25/summary
Description Of Item Posters

Incident details

Incident date

Incident log number

Incident number

Entered by 1299, PC Rebeka Casey

Page 43
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 13 of 13



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 12:23:46

Today's Extra

Refusals log found on till top

Phone number for Mr Arumugam Kalamohan I

Photograph(s)

Page 44
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 1 of 5




OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 12:23:46

Page 45
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 2 of 5



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 12:23:46

Page 46
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 3 of 5



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 12:23:46

Page 47
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 4 of 5



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 27-09-2024 12:23:46

Exhibit Ref Refusals log
Description Of Item Refusals log

Incident details

Incident date

Incident log number

Incident number

Entered by 1299, PC Rebeka Casey

Page 48
OFFICIAL

printed 3/10/2024 at 10:26 Page 5 of 5



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 07-11-2024 14:19:36

Today's, Caistor

Photograph(s)

Page 49
OFFICIAL

printed 19/11/2024 at 8:11 Page 1 of 6



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 07-11-2024 14:19:36

Page 50
OFFICIAL

printed 19/11/2024 at 8:11 Page 2 of 6



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 07-11-2024 14:19:36

Exhibit Ref
Description Of Item

Page 51
OFFICIAL

printed 19/11/2024 at 8:11 Page 3 of 6



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 07-11-2024 14:19:36

Page 52
OFFICIAL

printed 19/11/2024 at 8:11 Page 4 of 6



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 07-11-2024 14:19:36

Exhibit Ref Invoices
Description Of Item

Page 53
OFFICIAL

printed 19/11/2024 at 8:11 Page 5 of 6



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 07-11-2024 14:19:36

Exhibit Ref
Description Of Item

Incident details

Incident date

Incident log number

Incident number

Entered by 1299, PC Rebeka Casey

Page 574
OFFICIAL

printed 19/11/2024 at 8:11 Page 6 of 6



Form MG11

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r. 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9
URN
Statement of: Rebeka Casey
gglg if under 18: (if over 18 insert ‘over 18) Occupation:  Police Constable 1299

This statement (consisting of page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it,
anything which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature: - Date 15/07/25

Tick if withess evidence is visually recorded [_] (supply witness details on rear)

| am the above named person employed as a Police Constable within Lincolnshire Police Alcohol

Licensing Team.

On Tuesday 17" June 2025 | was on duty and in company with Community Beat Manager PC 1066
Turner. At approximately 11:00 hours we attended Today’s shop, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor to carry out a
compliance check. | have visited this premises twice in 2024 on both occasions non-compliance with the

premises licence was highlighted and on one occasion an illegal worker was found working within.

Upon arrival at the premises | saw two males chatting at the rear part of the shop. | recognised one of
the males and believed that we had met before, initially | suspected that he was the DPS that | had
encountered on a previous visit. This male avoided contact and straight away walked past me towards
the front of the shop. | had thought that he was just going to the till but very quickly realised that he was
making his escape via the front door onto the street. PC Turner was outside and we both followed the
male shouting him to stop but he refused. The male was temporarily lost but was soon located hiding
behind a parked vehicle on a nearby driveway. The male was detained and taken to our unmarked

Police vehicle so that we could ascertain why he had run from Police.

Page 1 of 3

Signature: Signature witnessed by:

Page 55

03/2017




Form MG11

Ry | |

Statement of:

The male did not have a very good understanding of English and so a Tamil interpreter was used to
facilitate communication via a telephone interpreting service. Male provided his name and D.O.B and |
then recalled that this was not the DPS but the illegal worker encountered and detained in September

2024.

| asked various questions of the male and recorded the answers on paper. The male admitted that he
had been back at the premises for around 2 weeks and that he worked 2/3 days each week sometimes
as little as 8 hours per week. Whilst on the premises the male would clean the shop and help with
deliveries. He said that he was paid cash by whoever was in the shop at the time and that the rate of pay

was £6 per hour.

| carried out some checks with Home Office Immigration who explained that the male was not currently
liable for detention. Advice was given to the male about how he could return to his home country of Sri

Lanka should he wish to do so. At that time the male did not wish to return so was allowed to leave.

| then went back to the shop to speak with other staff to check compliance and ascertain if CCTV could
be accessed — this shop assistant could not access the CCTV. The worker did hand me a folder
containing licensing and training documentation. Of note there was a blank incident book although the
refusals register did have multiple entries. | had a brief telephone conversation with Mr Kalamohan
(Licence holder) and explained the concern with the male who had run from the premises. Mr

Kalamohan stated that he had 3 staff employed at the shop and all had the right to work.

After the visit | emailed Mr Kalamohan and the DPS requesting copies of CCTV be provided between

10:00 and 11:15 on 17" June across all cameras angles. On 26" June | received confirmation from Mr

Page 2 of 3

Signature: _ Signature witnessed by:
- Page 56

03/2017



Form MG11

Ry | |

Statement of:

Kalamohan that the footage was ready and available for collection. On reviewing the CCTV | noted that
there were only 8 cameras included and one of those 8 did not appear to be working. Subsequently |
checked this with Mr Kalamohan who informed me that camera 8 was not working but that this only
covered the outside of the premises | asked if there were cameras at the rear of the shop and he sais
that there were not and there were only cameras in the stock room. Having previously looked at CCTV |
believed that there were more than 8 cameras and interestingly the area where the illegal worker had

been seen had not been captured from the footage provided.

On 10" July 2025 | went back to the Today’s shop and met with another different shop assistant. Mr
Kalamohan arranged for this member of staff to meet me there as he was unavailable in London. Upon
reviewing the CCTV with staff it was evident that there were in fact 16 cameras covering all public areas
of the shop as well as the staff rooms, the camera footage only retained from 4" July onwards meaning
footage from 17" June was missing. There is a condition on the premises licence which states that
footage must be retained for a minimum of 28 days meaning that the premises were in breach of this

condition.

Page 3 of 3

Signature: _ Signature witnessed by:
- Page 57

03/2017



A INTECFKETE. udad 111380

IMMIGRATION — EMPLOYEE QUESTIONS
Interviewing Officer: ?C«\?-gg ...... QP\SE— .....................

Interviewee: e ————_—~ . ||| oeeveseesssissiisssasanes

D.O.B:_ Place ofblnhSﬁ‘LWKﬁ(mFF MA)

TaLee

Person
speaking

1299

How long have you been working here?

M.T

2 WeeeS

1299

What is your job role/ what are your duties?

M .J

CLEANING THE SHOF
SoMmeNMES | WILL UIN LGAD DELIVELYES AND
PUT THEMW\ (NN STORE ROOM .

12399

What days/hours do you work each week or day?

M .J

2 or L DAYS €ACH weck

S-§ HourS ADAY . SomenmesS oNLY §HRS
el \NCCE .

1299

Do you work the same hours/days every week?

WY

NO SPECIf1IC DANS

12299

Who gave you this job?

M T

70
Ferensd Recommaenided Hiw FoR. JO& SoMconE
MOHAN (MALS).

1299

Who tells you what hours/days to work?

Page 58

\‘f[blLb N

ALED.



M .J

1229
M. T

My Aeiend - [ o Liues v CoNbon]
He WILC CALL Me AnD INFOEM ME -

S T ONWLY THIS  SHOP

NeS,

Who tells you what tasks/duties to do each day?

M.

WHOELEE S (N THe SHIP TS me WHAT 7O
DO.

1299

Do you have a shift roster?

NJO

1299

How are you paid? (Money, accommodation, food)

M T

CASH

1299

If Money, how much and how do you receive it?

=

CASH SOMETMES DAILY  SOMETMES QURN
COuP e OF DANS . £6.00 PeRr HOUR .

1299

Who pays you?

M -J

WHOBLEL 1S INTHE SHOP WILL AN . ) DONIT
kNBW THEI R NAMNES-

1299

Do you pay income tax or have a national insurance number?

M.J
1299
Ve

NJO
LS ACCOMODATION PARET OF fHE JOR .

If accommodation is given, would you be able fo stay at said premises if you
did not work/help out?

Page 59

NO 1TS my fereuos Accamodamon (rersne-T




N T NE€S

' iDs?
\299 Do you receive pay slips?

wm.T |NO-

?
1299 What name does the employer know you as”

T | DONT KNOwW (£ HE KNTWS Me Qe NOT . iVe
NEURE MET MOHAN, BUT  THINK HE OWNS THE

SHo P
12 89 Did you show documents before being offered the job? If so, what?

M.J | NO

Does vour employer know your Immigration status?
\233 y ploy y g

Mm.J | NO.

l7—89 Does your employer know you have no permission to work in the UK?

M. T N

»x OUeR PAGE ¥
Date/Time: H/ %/E IL’V

Language interview conducted in/interpreter used?

CTAMIG.. INTERPLETEE ~ TELECHING .. s s

................................................................................................................................................................................

Page 60




1299 | MET YOU IN S®T 2024, WHRT HATPEUEd APTRL THAT 2
M.3J | LEFT THE PLACE AND WeNT LONDON .

1299 HOW DID You GET TO (aNbaN
N T MY £2160D came TO Ger MmEe
1299 DID YoU ASKk Youl Feigsd TO Go To lonbony

M .J YES 1 CALLED MY A2Ien)D LAKSHMANAN AND TolD HIN
I HAD nD JOR ANSH NDWHEE TO STAY.
1299 WHAT DID Yau DO IN LoNDOoN .

M T SOMENMES CONSTRUCTION [CABCURING WORK-—~

1299  How dIDd You GeT 8AUO CAISTOR ¢
mJ 1 cave omH NG

1299 DID Yo HAVE A Ol Ce -

M . O NO (HAD NO HOLCE -

1299 WHAT WBULD HAPPEN iF He S$AI0 ND .

M. ) COULMVE STARYED Ny LONDBAN.- SoMmeNMES | HAD

ACCOMODAMON) O STAME WIiTH RIeNDS.

299 ALE Nou RIGHT e OF AN THING o

M .T NOT ARRAID .

299 WHERE WBULD poett Yau IkKE TO o NOW)

M .9 £ NOT Heee THSNY LONDON .
299 DOGS YOU WANT 7O STRY ARQ/E THE SHOP !

MN.T N0 &UT THEEE S ANYTHES Py LIVING THERS .

Page 61
1299  bo YouHAve A PACYPRT M. T - ND



299 HOowW did You GeT O THE Wk

M J ON A PLANE INTENDING TO &eT A TSR av A

SHIP. THES AGEIT TOOK. MY PASSPCOT . ™e AGEVT
BOUGHT ME TO UK AND THEN DS ALL EALAD |

1299 Do You HAVE THe AGENTS ~NAwe”
v.J
1299 HOO BId You meeT THE AGENT -

M .J REFOoRE ARLIVING AT HEATHEOW AIRLET 1' avi
Spacan) TO HIM ON THE PHONVE -

1299 WHAT DID He DO AFTEL THE AIRPCRT /

M . g | CALLED A FD WHO Gued 1IN ooDCh) AN D HE
CALRCTED ME HEU RETURNED TO HIS DN Couniey
NTW -

299 ARS Nou ReiNG Reced 1O STAY Heee

M-T NO NOTHING Ulke THAT .

299  DRES HE WANT TO GO BACK TO temderd=L THE SHoP 2

WM.J NO 1D Lilce T GO RACK-TO (LONVDdONS . MY perend would
GET A TRAIN) O &AuS NCiceT .

299 HOW WOLLD you GET 7o THE TeRIN STRMOoN |&uS
N)agaleN! K

M. T MY fRRIeNDd wBULh ARz AGE. .

1299 Do You HAOEC ANY OTHeR. DETAIS Of s ferdp !

"o

1299 HOW DOE YOu kaDy Hin™?

M. T L eNOA RN Reavt LONDAN) HE WORLE 1N ConSTeUCTN) (T
me . Page 62



(299 Do Nouw WANT TOSTAY v The Uk,

M.J  N& 1 HAK feBlans 10 MY OGN COUNTR N/

1299 Do You pnT TO GO BACK TO Spit CANKA -

MJ  NoO Recause | HANE. - PROBLENWS THePE .
1299

CONTACT THew e ASSITTANCE
CIRAVE_ DOCS AND WCreTs) . No DOCS [ Mmaney Wit
BE REQURE oM HiM .

1€ THep € A‘NYT\-H'\JG‘» £6C WE Cany Help ?
M.T o, |

Page 63



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

2 Horsemarket Caistor - Today's Local

Attended with PC 1066 Turner. Upon entry saw two males at the rear section of the shop. One
appeared to be sorting stock and the other was talking to him. I introduced myself and the male
sorting stock claimed to not understand he walked past and to the front of the shop and out of the
front door. PC Turner was outside. The male started running so we gave e chase and located him
hiding behind a vehicle on a nearby driveway. Male detained.

It was established that this male was ||| |} N /Ho had no right to work.
lllegal working interview carried out with Tamil interpretor on the telephone.

Once this male had been spoken with he was let on his way. We returned to the shop to continue
the compliance check. The second male from earlier had left my the time | arrived and a different
staff member was present.

Staff not able to access Cctv.

Mr Kalamohan spoken to on the phone and request for CCTV was explained.

Photograph(s)

3AISNI

004 901
S3ASINIYd AISNIDN
L)

IVANYIN ANY 901 DNINIVEL 44¥1S <«
A008 FHL NI LISIA HIFHL g40234 OL

SHOLISIA TIV = X008 SHOLISIA LNVAI1ZY /30110d /ALIMOHLNY Y01 <«

@&

Y23HI IONVINEWO2 — JONIDIT IHL NO SNOILIONOD =«

Page o4 Page 1 of 16
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29




OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Page 65
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 2 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Page 66
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 3 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Page 67
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 4 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Page 68
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 5 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Exhibit Ref Misc docs
Description Of Item Photos

Page 69
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 6 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Page 70
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 7 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Page 71
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 8 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Page 72
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 9 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Exhibit Ref Authority to sell
Description Of ltem Photos

Page 73
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 10 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Page /4
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 11 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Exhibit Ref Incidents
Description Of Item Photo

Page 75
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 12 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Page 76
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 13 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Page 7/
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 14 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Exhibit Ref Refusals log
Description Of Item Photos

Al

A
2

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page /8 Page 15 of 16
OFFICIAL



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 17-06-2025 12:58:35

Exhibit Ref Worker 1D
Description Of Item Photo

Incident details

Incident date

Incident log number

Incident number

Entered by 1299, PC Rebeka Casey

Page 79
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 14:29 Page 16 of 16



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Today's Caistor

Attended to review CCTV met by staff member ] who has been working at the shop for 1 week.

Also works at the Stamford shop. (Full ||| G

Live screen within shop displayed 16 camera angles.
CCTV only retained to 4th July not 28 days as per licence.

Footage from 17/06/25 could not be reviewed.

Photograph(s)

Page 80
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 1 of 18




OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Page 81
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 2 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Page 82
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 3 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Page 83
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 4 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Page 84
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 5 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Exhibit Ref Photo of CCTV coverage
Description Of ltem Photos

Page 85
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 6 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Page 86
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 7 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Page 87
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 8 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Page 88
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 9 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Page 89
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 10 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Page 90
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 11 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Exhibit Ref Rear of shop cameras
Description Of Item Photo

PN VISION

VIS ION FIIN VISION VISION TIKVISION.

VISION VISTON

VISTON \ AT/ 20Y

Page 91
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 12 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Exhibit Ref Back office review
Description Of ltem Photo

Page 92
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 13 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Page 93
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 14 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Page 94
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 15 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Page 95
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 16 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Exhibit Ref CCTV retention period
Description Of Item Photo

Page 96
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 17 of 18



OFFICIAL
Author: 3201299, Creation time: 10-07-2025 13:21:11

Exhibit Ref Staff training
Description Of Item Photo's
Incident details

Incident date

Incident log number

Incident number

Entered by 1299, PC Rebeka Casey

Page 97
OFFICIAL

printed 15/7/2025 at 10:14 Page 18 of 18



From: Casey, Rebeka (1299)

To: Arumugam Kalamohan
Subject: Re: *PLEASE REPLY* RE: Today"s, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor - Licensing visit
Date: 10 July 2025 13:19:39
Attachments: image001.png
image011.png

png-img-2220c3de-7647-43f2-8d9e-c5f5d232f540.png
png-img-bff77cbb-8786-4446-bdf2-75fd26d75ac4.png

Good Afternoon

Thanks for getting back to me unfortunately | have only just picked up your email as
I've been travelling. I've just arrived at Caistor so will speak to-.

XKind regards,
Rebeka

PC 1299 Rebeka Casey

Licensing Officer

ALCOHOL LICENSING TEAM

. 07973 845578
&9  rebeka.casey@lincs.police.uk
)&,\ Lincolnshire Police Headquarters, Deepdale Lane, Nettleham LN2 2LT
@&  www.lincs.police.uk
Y @LincsPolice ﬂ Lincolnshire Police @LincsPolice nextdoor.co.uk

WORKING TOGETHER TO MAKE LINCOLNSHIRE THE SAFEST PLACE TO LIVE, WORK AND VISIT

Sent: Thursday, July 10, 2025 11:51:53 AM

To: Casey, Rebeka (1299) <rebeka.casey@lincs.police.uk>; _

Subject: Re: *PLEASE REPLY* RE: Today's, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor - Licensing visit

This email originated from outside of the Force. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Page 98



Good Morning,
Following our conversation, please meet staff name Kavi at site.

Let me know your time of visit, to inform him.

Thanks
Kind Regards

Kalamohan

From: Casey, Rebeka (1299) <rebeka.casey@lincs.police.uk>
Sent: 10 July 2025 09:17

To: Arumugam Kalamohan ||| T ) VAN AV O IR
I -

Subject: *PLEASE REPLY* RE: Today's, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor - Licensing visit

Good Morning,
Rajith — I have tried to call you but getting voicemail.

Can one of you confirm that there will be someone at the premises today who can operate
CCTV please?

Xind regards,
Rebeka

PC 1299 Rebeka Casey

Licensing Officer

ALCOHOL LICENSING TEAM

S, 07973845578
&3  rebeka.casey@lincs.police.uk
'&I\ Lincolnshire Police Headquarters, Deepdale Lane, Nettleham LN2 2LT
@  www.lincs.police.uk
, @LincsPolice ﬂ Lincolnshire Police @LincsPolice nextdoor.co.uk

WORKING TOGETHER TO MAKE LINCOLNSHIRE THE SAFEST PLACE TO LIVE, WORK AND VISIT

Page 99



From: Casey, Rebeka (1299)
Sent: 07 July 2025 13:20

Tos Arumugam Kolamonon I 1A A

Subject: RE: Today's, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor - Licensing visit

Good Afternoon,

| am now in receipt of the CCTV that | requested from 17/06/25 but unfortunately do not
seem to have all cameras. Cameras 1-7 are working but camera 8 is blanked out. | do not
appear to have any footage from the rear section of the shop.

I would like to arrange to review the footage with you on site.

Rajith - Can you advise if you are on the premises tomorrow afternoon or Thursday at all
please?

XKind regards,
Rebeka

PC 1299 Rebeka Casey

Licensing Officer

ALCOHOL LICENSING TEAM

S, 07973845578
&3  rebeka.casey@lincs.police.uk
ﬁ Lincolnshire Police Headquarters, Deepdale Lane, Nettleham LN2 2LT
@  www.lincs.police.uk
, @LincsPolice ﬁ Lincolnshire Police @LincsPolice nextdoor.co.uk

WORKING TOGETHER TO MAKE LINCOLNSHIRE THE SAFEST PLACE TO LIVE, WORK AND VISIT

Page 100



From: Arumugam Kalamohan ||| G <>

Sent: 26 June 2025 13:08
To: Casey, Rebeka (1299) <rebeka.casey@lincs.police.uk>

Cc: RAIITHMANIA

Subject: Re: Today's, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor - Licensing visit

This email originated from outside of the Force. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Good Afternoon,

We haven't heard back from you.

Footage with the details you requested is recorded in pen drive and ready for collection.
Kindly get back.

Thanks
Kind Regards

Kalamohan

From: Arumugam Kalamohzn <

Sent: 18 June 2025 14:11
To: Casey, Rebeka (1299) <rebeka.casey@lincs.police.uk>

Cc: RAITHMANIA <RAJITHMANIA >

Subject: Re: Today's, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor - Licensing visit
Good Afternoon,

Since you requested all footages of cameras it is difficult to download and email as the file
size is large.

| have ordered USB drive once received will save the footage and notify you for collection.

However, if you require footage earlier, please send USB to store | will record it for you to
collectitin 2 to 3 hrs time.

Page 101



Let us know.

Thanks
Kind Regards

Kalamohan

From: Casey, Rebeka (1299) <rebeka.casey@lincs.police.uk>
Sent: 17 June 2025 14:30

ro: I

Subject: FW: Today's, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor - Licensing visit

Good Afternoon,
Further to our conversation earlier today please can you provide me with CCTV from the
premises between 10:00 and 11:15 today (17/06/25). At this stage | would like footage from

all camera angles.

In relation to the illegal worker | encountered - | will be in touch in due course.

XKind regards,
Rebeka

PC 1299 Rebeka Casey

Licensing Officer

ALCOHOL LICENSING TEAM

S, 07973845578
&3  rebeka.casey@lincs.police.uk
ﬁ Lincolnshire Police Headquarters, Deepdale Lane, Nettleham LN2 2LT
@  www.lincs.police.uk
, @LincsPolice 0 Lincolnshire Police @LincsPolice nextdoor.co.uk

WORKING TOGETHER TO MAKE LINCOLNSHIRE THE SAFEST PLACE TO LIVE, WORK AND VISIT

Page 102



From: Casey, Rebeka
Sent: 01 October 2024 15:52

To: I

Cc: Tracy Gavins <tracy.gavins@west-lindsey.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: Today's, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor - Licensing visit

Apologies — this time with Tracy copied in.

XKind regards,
Rebeka

PC 1299 Rebeka Casey

Licensing Officer

ALCOHOL LICENSING TEAM

S, 07973845578
63  rebeka.casey@lincs.police.uk
'&I\ Lincolnshire Police Headquarters, Deepdale Lane, Nettleham LN2 2LT
@  www.lincs.police.uk
, @LincsPolice ﬁ Lincolnshire Police @LincsPolice nextdoor.co.uk

WORKING TOGETHER TO MAKE LINCOLNSHIRE THE SAFEST PLACE TO LIVE, WORK AND VISIT

From: Casey, Rebeka
Sent: Tuesday, October 1, 2024 3:39 PM

Subject: Today's, 2 Horsemarket, Caistor - Licensing visit

Good Afternoon Mr Kalamohan,

This is an email to follow on from my visit with colleagues last Friday (27th September 24). As you
know we attended to carry out a routine compliance check and whilst there we encountered a
staff member who did not have the permission to work in the UK.

Despite there being a comprehensive licensing folder on site, unfortunately, most of the
documentation/training was blank with staff signatures missing from the relevant paperwork.
CCTV did not record for the 28 days as required on the premises licence appearing to only retain
for 23 days.

| have copied in Tracy Gavins at West Lindsey Council licensing so that she is aware of our
correspondence as she was with me during the visit on Friday.

Page 103



Please ensure you work to rectify these issues ASAP to uphold the licensing objectives and be
compliant with the premises licence.

XKind regards,
Rebeka

PC 1299 Rebeka Casey

Licensing Officer

ALCOHOL LICENSING TEAM

S, 07973845578
B3  rebeka.casey@lincs.police.uk
’fﬁ\ Lincolnshire Police Headquarters, Deepdale Lane, Nettleham LN2 2LT
@  www.lincs.police.uk
’ @LincsPolice G Lincolnshire Police @LincsPolice nextdoor.co.uk

WORKING TOGETHER TO MAKE LINCOLNSHIRE THE SAFEST PLACE TO LIVE, WORK AND VISIT

PLEASE NOTE: We are a Microsoft Office Site. Please make sure that files you send
can be read in this format. The information contained in this email is confidential and
is intended for the addressee(s) only. Any attachments to this message contain
information from Lincolnshire Police, which is confidential or privileged. The
copyright in the contents of this message and any attachments is the property of
Lincolnshire Police, and any unauthorised reproduction or disclosure is contrary to
the provisions of the Copyrights, Designs and Patents Act 1988. If you have received
this message in error or there are any problems, please notify the originator
immediately. The unauthorised use, disclosure, copying or alteration of this message
is strictly forbidden. Lincolnshire Police is not responsible for the content of this
message. Individuals are responsible for messages transmitted under their user ID
and their compliance with the law. This message and any attachments have been
scanned for viruses. Lincolnshire Police will not be liable for direct, special, indirect
or consequential damages arising from alteration of the contents of this message or

as a result of any virus being passed on.

PLEASE NOTE: We are a Microsoft Office Site. Please make sure that files you send can
be read in this format. The information contained in this email is confidential and is
intended for the addressee(s) only. Any attachments to this message contain information
from Lincolnshire Police, which is confidential or privileged. The copyright in the contents
of this message and any attachments is the property of Lincolnshire Police, and any
unauthorised reproduction or disclosure is contrary to the provisions of the Copyrights,
Designs and Patents Act 1988. If you have received this message in error or there are any
problems, please notify the originator immediately. The unauthorised use, disclosure,
copying or alteration of this message is strictly forbidden. Lincolnshire Police is not

Page 104



responsible for the content of this message. Individuals are responsible for messages
transmitted under their user ID and their compliance with the law. This message and any
attachments have been scanned for viruses. Lincolnshire Police will not be liable for direct,
special, indirect or consequential damages arising from alteration of the contents of this
message or as a result of any virus being passed on.

Page 105



South Kesteven District Council

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure

that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I Paul Gibson, Chief Constable of Lincolnshire Police

(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Todays Local
10 Red Lion Square

Stamford
Post town Post code (if known)
Lincolnshire PE9 2AJ

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Mohan Retail Ltd

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)

18188

Part 2 - Applicant details
lam Please tick v" yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

3) a member of the club to which this application relates
(please complete (A) below)

Page 106




(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v yes

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v" yes
I am 18 years old or over

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime coritact telephone number

E-miail address
optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (W

Page 107




(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Lincolnshire Police
Alcohol Licensing
Deepdale Lane
Nettleham

Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN2 2LT

Telephone number (if any)
101

E-mail address (optional)
Countylicensinggroup@lincs.pnn.police.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v’
1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

Page 108




Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

This review application relates to a premises which operates as a general
convenience store in the centre of Stamford Town Centre with high footfall,
offering food and drink to the local community. It has been granted a
Premises Licence 18188 by South Kesteven District Council.

The current premises licence holder is Mohan Retail Ltd (company number
07585287) with Arumugam Kalamohan as the sole director. The designated
premises supervisor is Santhosh Sekar.

The licence authorises the sale of alcohol and opening hours between 06:00
to 02:00 Monday to Sunday.

Lincolnshire Police have obtained evidence which indicates that the
management of these premises has been operating it in such a manner that
amounts to criminal activity and thus undermines the licencing objective of the
prevention of crime and disorder.

In relation to this review application the following guidance issued under
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 has been considered:

Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Section 2.1 states licensing authorities should look to the Police as the main
source of advice on crime and disorder.

Section 10.29 states in addition, every premises licence that authorises the sale
of alcohol must require that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence
must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Section 10.32 states the following factors should be relevant in considering
whether or not an authorisation has been given:

* the person(s) authorised to sell alcohol at any particular premises should be
clearly identified;

* the authorisation should have specified the acts which may be carried out by
the person who is authorised to supply alcohol,

* there should be an overt act of authorisation, for example, a specific written
statement given to the individual who is authorised to supply alcohol; and

* there should be in place sensible arrangements for the personal licence holder
to monitor the activity that they have authorised on a reasonably regular basis.

Section 10.33 states it is strongly recommended that personal licence holders
give specific written authorisations to individuals whom they are authorising to
retail alcohol. A single written authorisation would be sufficient to cover multiple
sales over an unlimited period. This would assist personal licence holders in
demonstrating due diligence should issues arise with enforcement authorities;
and would protect employees if they themselves are challenged in respect of
their authority to sell alcohol.

Page 109



Section 10.35 states it must be remembered that while the designated premises
supervisor or a personal licence holder may authorise other individuals to sell
alcohol in their absence, they are responsible for any sales that may be made.
Similarly, the premises licence holder remains responsible for ensuring that li-
censing law and licence conditions are observed at the premises.

All of the section 11 guidance is based on reviews:

Section 11.23 states where the premises are found to be trading irresponsibly,
the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take
tough action to tackle the problems at the premises.

Section 11.24 states a number of reviews may arise in connection with crime
that is not directly connected with licensable activities.

Section 11.25 states that in any case, it is for the licensing authority to
determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking
place on the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Section 11.26 states that where the licensing authority is conducting a review
on the grounds that the premises have been used for criminal purposes, it is
solely to determine what steps should be taken in connection with the premises
licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. The licensing
authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing
objectives and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider
community and not those of the individual licence holder.

Section 11.27 states that there is certain criminal activity that may arise in
connection with licensed premises which should be treated particularly
seriously. These are the use of licensed premises;

- for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK.

Section 11.28 states it is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the
Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies,
which are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to
deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority
determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined through the
premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the
licence — even in the first instance — should be seriously considered.

Page 110




South Kesteven District Council statement of licensing policy (2021 -
2026) also raises the following points that are deemed relevant to this
application:

1.17 In undertaking its licensing function, the Licensing Authority is also
bound by other legislation including, but not exclusively:

« Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 — which imposes a duty on
every Local Authority to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and dis-
order in its decision-making process.

4.1 Each of the four licensing objectives is of equal importance. The Licensing
Authority considers the effective and responsible management of the prem-
ises and the instruction, training and supervision of staff and the adoption of
best practice to be amongst the most essential control measures for the
achievement of the licensing objectives.

4.3 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
In accordance with the Guidance, Police views on matters relating to crime
and disorder will be given considerable weight. There are many steps an ap-
plicant may make to prevent crime and disorder. The Licensing Authority will
look to the Police for the main source of advice on these matters. (those rele-
vant to this application are below)

e Provision of CCTV in and around the premises.

Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Section 17:

Duty to consider crime and disorder implications.
(1)  Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the
duty of each authority to which this section applies to exercise its various
functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions
on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent,
(@) crime and disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour
adversely affecting

the local environment); and

(b) the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its area, and

(c) re-offending in its area

(2) This section applies to each of the following—

.a local authority ........ ;

Page 111




Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

Lincolnshire Police feel it necessary to outline their history with Mr Kalamohan
and his licenced premises elsewhere in the county to give context to this re-
view application.

In October 2018, Today’s Express, Market Place, Grantham, a premises
controlled by Mr Kalamohan was reviewed due to illegal working, selling
alcohol below the mandatory price, and non-compliance. This was again
initiated by Lincolnshire Police (see appendix 1 for police review application),
and the Committee made the decision to revoke this premises licence (see
appendix 2 for hearing notes and decision notice).

In 2020, Today’s Extra, 50 Kesteven Road, Stamford was reviewed.

Mr Kalamohan was premises licence holder at that time. The review was initi-
ated by Lincolnshire Police (see appendix 3 for police review application) fol-
lowing a visit made by Police and Immigration in March 2020. During this
visit, an illegal worker was encountered, in addition to two persons located in
the staff accommodation area with no right to work who were believed to be
workers at the premises. Various non-compliance issues were also high-
lighted. At hearing, the Committee made the decision to modify the licence to
include more stringent conditions relating to staff training and refresher train-
ing, checks and recording of employees right to work. (see appendix 4 for
meeting minutes and decision notice).

Due to persistent and serious concerns about Mr Kalmohan’s ability to
manage licensed premises, Lincolnshire Police feel that this review is
necessary. Mr Kalmohan also has control of two other convenience stores
that also each hold a premises licence, Today’s Local 10 Red Lion Square,
Stamford and Today’s 2 Horsemarket Caistor, both of these premises are also
currently subject to licence reviews instigated by Lincolnshire Police.

Full details of the concerns Lincolnshire Police have in relation to the 50
Kesteven Road Stamford premises can be found in the review application
submitted alongside this review (see appendix 14).

The review application submitted by Lincolnshire Police for 2 Horsemarket,
Casitor, in summary provides evidence of two separate occasions where
police have encountered illegal working alongside non-compliance issues
(see appendix 13 for review application).

Lincolnshire Police find themselves in a position where they can demonstrate
Mr Kalamohan cannot operate responsibly under the Licensing Act 2003, the
licensing objective and associated legislation.

This premises with licence 18188 under review has been visited by police on
four separate occasions over the last two years, and consistent issues have
been encountered during every visit. During this period Mr Kalamohan has

Page 112




always held the premises licence in his company’s name — Mohan Retail, but
there have been various different designated premises supervisors (DPS) not
including Mr Kalamohan. These visits are summarised below:

2" August 2023

A Police Licensing inspection was carried out, and non-compliance including,
the absence of a personal licence holder on the premises and a lack of
signage were noted (see appendix 5 for Pc Braithwaite’s statement).

During the visit a lone worker was encountered. His details were passed to
the National Command and Control Unit (NCCU) for Immigration over the
phone at the time of the visit. NCCU confirmed his status was in question,
and Immigration officers would require a re-visit. There was not enough
information available at the time to take any action or confirm that he did not
have the right to work in the shop.

An email was sent to Mr Kalamohan following this visit, informing him that
areas of non-compliance had been discovered in his shop, requesting he
address this to ensure full compliance. Mr Kalamohan simply replied with the
contact details for the DPS at the time — Ms Narmatha Rasathurai and copied
her into the email trail (see appendix 6 for emails). He did not make any
comment regarding the non-compliance issues.

3rd October 2023

A Police Licensing inspection was carried out in company with Immigration
officers. A lone worker encountered was arrested by Immigration and
Immigration informed the police that they believed that he did not have the
right to work (see appendix 11 for Immigration interview with worker). He was
arrested for being an overstayer. This male was the same worker who had
been encountered working alone in the shop of the 2" August 2023. The
same non-compliance issues were again discovered during this visit. (see
appendix 5 for Pc Braithwaite’s statement).

The DPS at the time of this visit was still Ms Narmatha Rasathurai.

Immigration officers referred this case to the Home Office Civil Penalty
Compliance Team for a civil penalty to be issued, however no further action
was taken. Whilst Lincolnshire Police acknowledge no further action was
taken by the Home Office on this occasion, Immigration officers informed
police that they believed the worker encountered was working without the
correct right to work entitlement, which does amount to a crime. Although the
penalty was not issued on this occasion, it does not alter the circumstances,
and in conjunction with the confirmed illegal workers discovered at Mr
Kalamohan’s other shops previously, we feel this should be seen as more
than just merely coincidental.

Page 113




7th November 2024

A Police Licensing inspection was carried out in company with Immigration
officers. Various non-compliance of conditions were discovered and included,
the absence of a premises licence on site, the absence of a personal licence
holder on site, CCTV issues, an invalid DPS authority, a disorganised and
outdated refusals register, lack of shop signage in relation to customers
leaving quietly, alcohol found on sale in areas of the shop it was not permitted
(see appendix 7 for Sgt Adams’s statement and appendix 8 for images and
evidence taken as exhibit ACAL).

Although the shop worker at the time was checked by Immigration and found
to be legally entitled to work, Sgt Adams documents in her statement a
suspicious male encountered just outside the premises who appeared to be
connected with the premises. His details were checked, and he was found to
have no right to work (see appendix 12 for Immigration evidence). Although
at the time, there was no direct evidence the male had been working,
particularly due to CCTV not being reviewable at the premises, the male was
found with Mr Kalamohan’s bank card in his phone case.

An email was sent to Mr Kalamohan following this visit requesting urgent
action was taken to rectify the issues, however in his response he did not
acknowledge or provide any comment regarding the concerns, despite the
warning given to him that proceedings under the Licensing Act 2003 would be
considered should the premises be found in breach its conditions again.

Police also requested CCTYV footage for this premises for a three-hour period
on the 7" November 2024 and a staff list for that same date. The purpose of
this request was to establish if the suspicious male with no right to work had
indeed been working at the premises.

In Mr Kalamohan's response, he provided a list of individuals that had
apparently worked at the shop that day, of which the male did not feature. He
suggested that the length of CCTV footage time requested may have been
too large to copy.

A CCTV storage device was provided to the police, however it did not contain
any footage from this premises at all. When Mr Kalamohan was questioned
about this, he stated he had attempted to re-copy it but it had dropped off the
system. (see appendix 9 for email conversations).

The concern at this time was that this may well have been a deliberate act of
avoidance by Mr Kalamohan to provide CCTV, to prevent the police
discovering the male had actually been working in this shop. This is the type
of suspicious behaviour around CCTV was documented when Pc Casey
visited the premises in Caistor and during the subsequent follow-up enquiries
with Mr Kalamohan in relation to an illegal worker discovered there (see
appendix 11, page 8 of the Caistor shop review application).

On the 20" November 2024 Lincolnshire Police received a DPS variation for
this premises from Ms Rasathurai to a Thasatharan Amirthalingham. Mr

Page 114




Kalamohan had mentioned in his email on the 22" November that Ms
Rasathurai had quit her job, but it is suspected that this had actually been a
tactic deployed in an attempt for Mr Kalamohan to relinquish his responsibility
for failings at the premises.

17t June 2025

A Police Licensing inspection was carried out at the premises and virtually the
same various non-compliance issues discovered on the 7" November 2024
were discovered (see appendix 7 for Sgt Adams’s statement).

At the point of this visit, the position of DPS had been varied to a Santhosh
Sekar. Lincolnshire Police had received this variation application on the 14t
April 2025, and to date this person who is the current DPS for the premises.

During all visits to this premises highlighted above, the multiple occasions
where non-compliance of the annex 2 of the licence amount to s.136 offences
under the Licensing Act 2004 — unauthorised licensable activity.

Also, during these visits, quantities of non-priced alcohol have been witnessed
which is an offence under the Price Marking Order Act 2004 (for images taken
see appendix 10 for exhibit KBO1 alongside appendix 8 for exhibit ACAL).

Lincolnshire Police deem the management of the premises to be
unacceptable and feel that Mr Kalamohan has been given sufficient and
appropriate warnings/advice regarding all three shops which now face review.

It is a major concern that having narrowly avoided revocation of the 50
Kesteven Street licence in 2020, and also experiencing the revocation of the
Market Place Grantham licence in 2018 (due to the same issues as present),
Mr Kalamohan still cannot get his operations right. We would argue that this
cannot simply be a case of lack of understanding, more likely blatant
disregard on the part of Mr Kalamohan.

It is an offence to employ an illegal worker under section 21 of the Immigration,
Asylum and Nationality Act 2006, as amended by section 35 of the Immigration
Act 2016, if the employer knows or has reasonable cause to believe that they
are employing an illegal worker. The employer by law must carry out various
checks to ensure that their staff are legally allowed to work.

Where an employer pays wages to illegal workers off record with no tax or na-
tional insurance deductions which are then deliberately omitted from an em-
ployers End of Tax Year P35 returns to HMRC, the employer may be dealt with
by means of the Fraud Act 2006. Similarly, HMRC may take action as a civil
proceedings case and raise a tax debt against the business.

lllegal workers are more than likely poorly paid for the hours they are required
to work and are not subject to the benefit of a minimum wage or restricted hours

Page 115




as prescribed in law. Nor are they afforded the benefit of the protections offered
by UK employment legislation and are therefore often exploited.

Lincolnshire has led the way with how illegal working within licenced premises
and its impact on how the crime prevention objective should be viewed. The
stated case of East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif in 2016 involved an
illegal worker in a licenced premises in Lincolnshire in April 2014, where a civil
penalty was later issued by immigration. The premises licence was reviewed
and revoked, an appeal followed which was successful, based on the argument
that a civil penalty was not a prosecution and so did not concern the crime
prevention objective. East Lindsey District Council then appealed that decision
by way of a case stated, arguing that it was not necessary for a crime to have
been reported, prosecuted, or established in a court of law in order for the crime
prevention objective to be engaged. That the licensing objectives were pro-
spective and were concerned with the avoidance of harm in the future. Mr Jus-
tice Jay upheld the councils appeal, citing defrauding the revenue and exploi-
tation of vulnerable individuals by not paying minimum wage as evidence of the
commission of criminal offences, and the fact that the employee could not pro-
vide the required paperwork as clear inference that Mr Hanif well knew that he
was employing an illegal worker.

Lincolnshire Police feel the licence this premises operates under has become
outdated, with poorly worded conditions that are not specific or measurable
enough for this type of business operation. They lack detail in relation to re-
quirements around CCTYV, staff training, incident and refusals recording, and
age verification policy. There is also an absence of any conditions in relation
to staff right to work checks and recording.

But that said, all these conditions are present on the 50 Kesteven Road prem-
ises licence, and the review application submitted for that particular premises
evidences the consistent failure over a two-year period by Mr Kalamohan to
adhere to a robust set of conditions.

Lincolnshire Police have no confidence in the ability of Mr Kalamohan to up-
hold the licensing objectives and respectfully request that the committee seri-
ously consider the revocation of this premises licence.

Page 116




Have you made an application for review relating to the
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them.

Lincolnshire Police have never made an application regarding this particular premises, but
have taken two other premises to review where Mr Kalamohan has been the Premises
Licence Holder (detailed in report above).

Page 117




Please tick v/
yes

e | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

e | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

C 824 BRAITHWAITE

Signature

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. Aresponsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

n

o>

Page 118




6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Page 119



South Kesteven District Council

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure

that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I Paul Gibson, Chief Constable of Lincolnshire Police

(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Todays Extra
50 Kesteven Road

Stamford
Post town Post code (if known)
Lincolnshire PE9 1SU

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Arumugam Kalamohan

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)

23619

Part 2 - Applicant details
lam Please tick v" yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

3) a member of the club to which this application relates
(please complete (A) below)

Page 120




(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v yes

Mr Mrs Miss Ms Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v" yes
I am 18 years old or over

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime coritact telephone number

E-miail address
optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (W

Page 121




(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Lincolnshire Police
Alcohol Licensing
Deepdale Lane
Nettleham

Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN2 2LT

Telephone number (if any)
101

E-mail address (optional)
Countylicensinggroup@lincs.pnn.police.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v’
1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

Page 122




Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

This review application relates to a premises which operates as a general
convenience store offering food and drink to the local community. It has been
granted a Premises Licence 23619 by South Kesteven District Council.

The current premises licence holder and designated premises supervisor is
Arumugam Kalamohan.

The licence authorises the sale of alcohol and opening hours between 06:00
to 00:00 Monday to Sunday.

Lincolnshire Police have obtained evidence which indicates that the
management of this premises has been operating it in such a manner that
amounts to criminal activity and thus undermines the licencing objective of the
prevention of crime and disorder. There is also clear evidence of non-
compliance with the conditions set out on the premises licence.

In relation to this review application the following guidance issued under
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 has been considered:

Revised Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Section 2.1 states licensing authorities should look to the Police as the main
source of advice on crime and disorder.

Section 10.29 states in addition, every premises licence that authorises the sale
of alcohol must require that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence
must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Section 10.32 states the following factors should be relevant in considering
whether or not an authorisation has been given:

* the person(s) authorised to sell alcohol at any particular premises should be
clearly identified;

* the authorisation should have specified the acts which may be carried out by
the person who is authorised to supply alcohol;

* there should be an overt act of authorisation, for example, a specific written
statement given to the individual who is authorised to supply alcohol; and

* there should be in place sensible arrangements for the personal licence holder
to monitor the activity that they have authorised on a reasonably regular basis.

Section 10.33 states it is strongly recommended that personal licence holders
give specific written authorisations to individuals whom they are authorising to
retail alcohol. A single written authorisation would be sufficient to cover multiple
sales over an unlimited period. This would assist personal licence holders in
demonstrating due diligence should issues arise with enforcement authorities;
and would protect employees if they themselves are challenged in respect of
their authority to sell alcohol.

Page 123




Section 10.35 states it must be remembered that while the designated premises
supervisor or a personal licence holder may authorise other individuals to sell
alcohol in their absence, they are responsible for any sales that may be made.
Similarly, the premises licence holder remains responsible for ensuring that li-
censing law and licence conditions are observed at the premises.

All of the section 11 guidance is based on reviews:

Section 11.23 states where the premises are found to be trading irresponsibly,
the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take
tough action to tackle the problems at the premises.

Section 11.24 states a number of reviews may arise in connection with crime
that is not directly connected with licensable activities.

Section 11.25 states that in any case, it is for the licensing authority to
determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking
place on the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Section 11.26 states that where the licensing authority is conducting a review
on the grounds that the premises have been used for criminal purposes, it is
solely to determine what steps should be taken in connection with the premises
licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. The licensing
authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing
objectives and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider
community and not those of the individual licence holder.

Section 11.27 states that there is certain criminal activity that may arise in
connection with licensed premises which should be treated particularly
seriously. These are the use of licensed premises;

- for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK.

Section 11.28 states it is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the
Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies,
which are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to
deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority
determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined through the
premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the
licence — even in the first instance — should be seriously considered.

Page 124




South Kesteven District Council statement of licensing policy (2021 -
2026) also raises the following points that are deemed relevant to this
application:

1.17 In undertaking its licensing function, the Licensing Authority is also
bound by other legislation including, but not exclusively:

« Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 — which imposes a duty on
every Local Authority to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and dis-
order in its decision-making process.

4.1 Each of the four licensing objectives is of equal importance. The Licensing
Authority considers the effective and responsible management of the prem-
ises and the instruction, training and supervision of staff and the adoption of
best practice to be amongst the most essential control measures for the
achievement of the licensing objectives.

4.3The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
In accordance with the Guidance, Police views on matters relating to crime
and disorder will be given considerable weight. There are many steps an ap-
plicant may make to prevent crime and disorder. The Licensing Authority will
look to the Police for the main source of advice on these matters. (those rele-
vant to this application are below)

e Provision of CCTV in and around the premises.

Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Section 17:

Duty to consider crime and disorder implications.
(1)  Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the
duty of each authority to which this section applies to exercise its various
functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions
on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent,
(@) crime and disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour
adversely affecting

the local environment); and

(b) the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its area, and

(c) re-offending in its area

(2) This section applies to each of the following—

.a local authority ........ ;

Page 125




Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

This premises was previously reviewed back in 2020 and the premises li-
cence holder at that time was Mr Kalamohan. The review was initiated by Lin-
colnshire Police (see appendix A for police review application) following a visit
made by Police and Immigration in March 2020. During this visit, an illegal
worker was encountered, in addition to two persons located in the staff ac-
commodation area with no right to work who were believed to be workers at
the premises. Various non-compliance issues were also highlighted.

A hearing was held, and the decision made by the Committee was to modify
the licence to include more stringent conditions relating to staff training and
refresher training, checks and recording of employees right to work (see ap-
pendix B for hearing minutes and decision notice).

The Home Office have recently confirmed that the £10,000 penalty issued in
relation to the illegal working discovered in 2020 remains outstanding and has
since been referred to a third-party debt collection agency. Although this pen-
alty was not issued to Mr Kalamohan personally, the business was still under
his control at the time.

It is also important to note that in October 2018, another of Mr Kalamohan’s
premises, Today’s Express, Market Place, Grantham faced a review hearing
due to illegal working, selling alcohol below the mandatory price, and non-
compliance. This was again initiated by Lincolnshire Police (see appendix C
for police review application), and the Committee made the decision to revoke
this premises licence (see appendix D for hearing notes and decision notice).

Due to persistent and serious concerns about Mr Kalamohan’s ability to
manage licensed premises, Lincolnshire Police feel that this review is
necessary. Mr Kalamohan also has control of two other convenience stores
that each hold a premises licence, Today’s Local 10 Red Lion Square,
Stamford and Today’s 2 Horsemarket Caistor, both of these premises are also
currently subject to licence reviews instigated by Lincolnshire Police.

Full details of the concerns Lincolnshire Police have in relation to the Red
Lion Square premises can be found in the review application submitted
alongside this review (see appendix M).

The review application submitted by Lincolnshire Police for 2 Horsemarket,
Caistor, in summary provides evidence of two separate occasions where
police have encountered illegal working alongside non-compliance issues
(see appendix E for review application).

Lincolnshire Police find themselves in a position where they can demonstrate
Mr Kalamohan cannot operate responsibly under the Licensing Act 2003, the
licensing objective and associated legislation.

Page 126




This premises with licence 23619 under review, has been visited by police on
three separate occasions over the last two years, and consistent issues have
been encountered during every visit. During this period Mr Kalamohan has
always held the position of designated premises supervisor (DPS). These
visits are summarised below:

3rd October 2023

A Police Licensing inspection was carried out in company with Immigration.
An illegal worker was encountered (see appendix L for Immigration interview
with worker), coupled with non-compliance of conditions including CCTV, DPS
authority, right to work documentation and staff training (see appendix F for
Pc Braithwaite’s statement and appendix G for images taken and exhibited as
KBO1).

Immigration officers referred this case to the Home Office Civil Penalty
Compliance Team for a civil penalty to be issued, however no further action
was taken.

Whilst Lincolnshire Police acknowledge no further action was taken by the
Home Office on this occasion, it was certainly confirmed at the time that the
worker encountered was working without the correct right to work entitlement,
which does amount to a crime. Although the threshold for a penalty was not
met on this occasion, it does not alter the circumstances, and in conjunction
with the confirmed illegal workers discovered at Mr Kalamohan’ s other shops
in the past, we feel this should be seen as more than just merely coincidental.

7th November 2024

A Police Licensing inspection was carried out and various non-compliance
identified of conditions relating to CCTV, DPS authority, incident and refusals
recording, signage, right to work documentation and staff training was
discovered (see appendix F for Pc Braithwaite’s statement and appendix H for
images taken and exhibited as KB02).

An email was sent to Mr Kalamohan following this visit requesting urgent
action was taken to rectify the issues, however in his response he did not
acknowledge or provide any comment regarding the concerns, despite being
given the warning that proceedings under the Licensing Act 2003 would be
considered should the premises be found in breach its conditions again. (see
appendix | for emails).

17t June 2025

A Police Licensing inspection was carried out and once again non-compliance
with conditions relating to CCTV, DPS authority, incident and refusals
recording, location of spirits, shop signage, right to work documentation and
staff training were discovered.

Concerns were also noted in respect of the sale of equipment used to prepare
and smoke illegal drugs, along with the sale of ‘Poppers’ a product commonly
used as a recreation drug. (see appendix J for Pc Braithwaite’s statement and
appendix K for images taken as KB03).

Page 127




The multiple occasions where non-compliance of both the annex 2 and 3
conditions of the licence have been discovered during inspections, amount to
s.136 offences under the Licensing Act 2004 — unauthorised licensable
activity.

During the visits carried out in 2023 and 2025, quantities of non-priced alcohol
were witnessed which is an offence under the Price Marking Order Act 2004
(see appendices KB/01 and 03 for images taken).

It is an offence to employ an illegal worker under section 21 of the Immigration,
Asylum and Nationality Act 2006, as amended by section 35 of the Immigration
Act 2016, if the employer knows or has reasonable cause to believe that they
are employing an illegal worker. The employer by law must carry out various
checks to ensure that their staff are legally allowed to work.

Where an employer pays wages to illegal workers off record with no tax or na-
tional insurance deductions which are then deliberately omitted from an em-
ployers End of Tax Year P35 returns to HMRC, the employer may be dealt with
by means of the Fraud Act 2006. Similarly, HMRC may take action as a civil
proceedings case and raise a tax debt against the business.

lllegal workers are more than likely poorly paid for the hours they are required
to work and are not subject to the benefit of a minimum wage or restricted hours
as prescribed in law. Nor are they afforded the benefit of the protections offered
by UK employment legislation and are therefore often exploited.

Lincolnshire has led the way with how illegal working within licenced premises
and its impact on how the crime prevention objective should be viewed. The
stated case of East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif in 2016 involved an
illegal worker in a licenced premises in Lincolnshire in April 2014, where a civil
penalty was later issued by immigration. The premises licence was reviewed
and revoked, an appeal followed which was successful, based on the argument
that a civil penalty was not a prosecution and so did not concern the crime
prevention objective. East Lindsey District Council then appealed that decision
by way of a case stated, arguing that it was not necessary for a crime to have
been reported, prosecuted, or established in a court of law in order for the crime
prevention objective to be engaged. That the licensing objectives were pro-
spective and were concerned with the avoidance of harm in the future. Mr Jus-
tice Jay upheld the councils appeal, citing defrauding the revenue and exploi-
tation of vulnerable individuals by not paying minimum wage as evidence of the
commission of criminal offences, and the fact that the employee could not pro-
vide the required paperwork as clear inference that Mr Hanif well knew that he
was employing an illegal worker.

Lincolnshire Police deem the management of this premises to be
unacceptable and feel that Mr Kalamohan has been given sufficient and
appropriate warnings/advice regarding all three shops which now face review.

Page 128




Lincolnshire Police cannot identify any other conditions that could be imposed
to prevent the highlighted issues from recurring.

It is a major concern that Mr Kalamohan, having narrowly avoided revocation
of this licence in 2020, has been completely non-compliant with the annex 3
conditions imposed by the Committee on all occasions police have inspected
the premises since the hearing. We would argue that this cannot simply be a
case of lack of understanding, more likely blatant disregard on the part of Mr
Kalamohan.

Lincolnshire Police have no confidence in the ability of Mr Kalamohan to up-
hold the licensing objectives and respectfully request that the committee seri-
ously consider the revocation of this premises licence.

Page 129




Have you made an application for review relating to the
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them.

Lincolnshire Police applied to have this premises reviewed in 2020 as described above, and
the Committee made the decision to modify licence conditions.

Page 130




Please tick v/
yes

e | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

e | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature PC 824 BRAITHWAITE
Date 22/08/2025
Capacity for and on behalf of Chief Constable of Lincolnshire Police

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. Aresponsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

n

o>

Page 131




6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Page 132



Form MG11

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r. 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9
|URN_| | | |
Statement of:
Rebeka Casey
'i‘ge if under 018 (if over 18 insert ‘over 18") Occupation:  Police Constable 1299

This statement (consisting of 2 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and
I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it,
anything which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature: -

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded [] (supply witness details on rear)

Date 16.09.25

I am the above named person employed as a Police Alcohol Licensing Officer within Lincolnshire Police.

On Friday 12" September 2025 at approximately 09:45 hours | attended Today’s 2 Horsemarket, Caistor
alongside Sgt Adams. The purpose of the visit was to return a USB stick containing CCTV to the owner

of the premises.

Upon entering the shop, | saw a lone female working behind the counter who had just finished serving a
customer. | introduced myself showing identification (warrant card) and asked if there was anyone else in
the shop. The female did not seem to understand what | was saying, and it quickly became apparent that
she spoke little to no English. Sgt Adams checked the rest of the shop and could not find any other staff
present. | asked the female if she had any identification but again, she was not able to understand. The
female did say “JUST TRAINING, JUST TRAINING” but wasn’t able to answer when | asked who was
training her. | then asked if there was an incident/visitor book | could write in, but the female did not
appear to understand. | was aware from previous visits that the premises has a blue folder with all
licensing related documents in and | could see this folder on the staff side of the counter top adjacent to

the window, | pointed the folder out and the female passed it to me.

Page 1 of 2

Signature: e source not Signature witnessed by:

Pagp 133

03/2017



Form MG11

Ry | |

Statement of: PC 1299 CASEY

Subsequently the female made a call on her mobile phone to her husband. From the callers photo ID |
could see that this was a male that | had previously met at the shop. | spoke to the male and asked if he
could get his wife to show me some ID which she did, | also asked him to explain that | was purely at the

shop to return some property which I'd like someone to sign for.

The female did provide ID and | checked her status with Home Office Immigration who confirmed that
she was a Sri Lankan national with leave to remain as a dependant and had the right to work until 5"

June 2026.

| then checked the incident book and training logs and found that the female was listed on the DPS
authority to sell alcohol (dated 02.09.25) and alcohol training log (dated 16.06.25). Both documents were

within the blue folder that | had pointed out to the female earlier.

Even though this female was listed on the DPS authority and training logs | had concerns that she was
not able to converse to a basic level in English and in particular was worried about her ability to fulfil the

Challenge 25 policy and any necessary refusals of alcohol.

The females husband arrived quickly and took possession of the USB stick. | populated the incident

book to record my visit for the licence holders’ records before leaving the shop.

Page 2 of 2

Signature witnessed by:
34

Pagp 1

03/2017



	Agenda
	4 Procedure
	6 Licence Hearing
	Appendix 1 -Today's, Caistor - application for review
	Appendix 2 -Todays Extra premises licence
	Appendix A MG11 PC Casey Today's_Redacted
	Appendix B PNBE PC CASEY 27.09.24_Redacted
	Appendix C PNBE PC CASEY 07.11.24_Redacted
	Appendix D MG11 PC Casey 15.07.25_Redacted
	Appendix E Illegal working interview 17.06.25_Redacted
	Appendix F PNBE PC CASEY 17.06.25_Redacted
	Appendix G PNBE PC CASEY 10.07.25_Redacted
	Appendix H Emails_Redacted
	10 Red Lion Square review application REDACTED
	50 Kesteven Road review application REDACTED
	MG11 re 12.09.25




